


When the first settlers came to the St. Jones Creek area of Kent County
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7,

th

D
association with the ci in Kent, England. Today the
modern corporate s ty in part emblazoned with the

arms of Dover, England.
Although one early missionary wrote in 1711 for a transfer claiming that
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Dover resounded to the noise of saws and brickwork throughout the

known as the Br Loo ouse; Nicholas Ridgely build Eden
Hill Farm near and ckinson, father of the ‘“‘Penman of
the Revolution,” build the handsome plantation house now called the
John Dickinson Mansion.

have survived.

The friction between England and an colonies influenced
events in Dover. The tension mounted w he closing of the Port of
Boston; in Delaware, as well as in other colonies, each new development was
met with varying responses.

before a large crowd. Exci nted. As Thoma
Tilton related the story lon acertain John C
one of the few opposing the move. As he was leaving the meeting he was

seized by the crowd y, and pe eggs before
he could be rescued Clarke’s rs, aided by
Horse under in
and t over. T 9,
. The “Black s co

Dover ready to fight, but hesitated on the outskirts upon learning that the
Dover Light Infantry was armed and ready to defend the town and that the
leader of the Light Cavalry had been put under house arrest. Their demand
that four Whigs be turned over for hanging met stern refusal, and brought
a warning from Thomas Rodney, ¢ of the Infantry, that they
had best disperse while they had to do so “unmolested.”
Rodney, in his account of the event, re they fled like ¢

from the shore,” and he later composed g poem to com

the defeat of the “insurrection:”

A
SONG

of
1776
Black Munday was a Mighty day
For Refugees and Tories
Three hundred bravely run away
Chock full of lies and Stories
Lang do Lang Diddle
The Captain of the brave Light Horse
egan the insurrection
His Videts flew on every course
To e wide infection.
Lang Diddle
Dark and Secret was their plan
To burn the Town of Dover
But ¢’re their furious work began
They were all quite don Over
Lang do Lang Diddle
Tidings came about Midnight
The Town would be invaded
And the Infantry ’er light
Like Lyons all
Lang do Lang Diddle
They placed bright Guards around the Town
Determined to Defend it
And bare bold insurrection down
And to the Devil Send it.
Lang do Lang Diddle
For Sattin first the standard reard
Insurrection
And Evil Mind repaird
Who caught the foul infection
Lang do Lang Diddle
He was Ever deemed thence
The Prince of proud Rebell’on
And all Insurgents hurried Since
With all their crimes to Hellon
Lang do Lang Diddle
Tidinigs came they were undone
Their arrested
Their Impiou all made known
And all their Crimes detested
Lang do Lang Diddle



Action in the events surrounding the Declaration of Independence and the
Revolution was generally centered in other states, but it was from Dover that
Caesar Rodney, one of Delaware’s foremost patriots and heroes, was called
to cast his vote for Independence and assure the state’s adoption of that
document. His adventurous and inspiring gallop to Philadelphia has placed
him in the annals of American History, and earned him the love and respect
of succeeding generations of Delawareans.

It was from Kent County that the famous Delaware Battalion marched to
join Washington’s main army and win the timeless respect of all American
warriors and the nickname, Blue Hens Chickens. This epithet refers to the
spirited fighting cocks that Delaware men carried with them to the war. The
bird has since been honored by its adoption as the State Bird.

The post-war years were ones of political change, and because Dover was
the state capital, its residents were involved in the founding of the nation.
The most important single event which occurred in Dover was the ratifica-
tion of the Federal Constitution on December 7, 1787. Delaware was the first
state to ratify the new document, thus earning her the nickname First State.

During these years, Dover continued to thrive. In 1785 it had an estimated
population of 600, and according to one observer had ‘“‘alively appearance,”
ccf)r;)51§iir§,k)le trade with Philadelphia, and about 100 houses, “‘principally
of brick.

The tumultuous times in the new Republic, as the young United States
was buffeted by the effects of a major European conflict, had their reverbera-
tions in Dover. Henry M. Ridgely, a Dover resident and United States
Representative, joined his fellow Federalists in voting “No”’ to a Declaration
of War in 1812. During the war, a adron blockaded the Delaware
Bay, cruised menacingly off the succeeded in bombarding the
pilot town of Lewes, Delaware. Much to its credit, however, the town
stoutly defended itself, and escaped with ““1 chicken killed, 1 pig wounded!”

Dover was incorporated in 1829. It has remained one of the smaller state
capitals. During the period 1830-1860, Dover prospered; the railroad ar-
rived in 1856. The crops and provisions of the Kent County fields were
shipped by train to Wilmington and Philadelphia. With the advent of the
railroad, old river packets and river towns began their decline.

Thirty years of relative peace was broken by the Mexican War in 1846, and
by the gathering clouds of social reform centering around the slavery ques-
tion. Doverites were divided on this issue, as was the nation. Every shade of
opinion was reflected. Free Negroes were kidnapped from the vicinity for
sale in the South, and Southern fugitives found protection and help here on
their road to freedom in the North. Some of the historic homes in and near
Dover were reputedly stops on the Underground Railroad. Some of
Delaware’s prominent families were involved in helping runaway slaves
escape to the north. The Mifflin house near Camden, the homes of the
Hunns near Lebanon, and Woodburn, now the Governor’s House in Dover,
reputedly figured in many daring and adventurous episodes from this trou-
bled time. It was in these pre-Civil War days that the infamous Patty Cannon
and her band engaged in kidnap and murder to obtain slaves for Southern
markets. A favorite legend, used in The Entailed Hat, by George Alfred
Townsend, tells of a raid upon a group of free Negroes gathered at Wood-
burn for a servant’s party.

Harriet Tubman, the famous Black patriot, made her way through Dover
several times shepherding escaped slaves to the North. Her heroic exploits
and impassioned belief in freedom earned her the title ‘““Moses of
her people.”

Every possible attitude toward the Civil War had adherents in Delaware,
although outright secessionists were rare. Among the overwhelming major-
ity loyal to the Union, there were passionate patriots, others who criticized
the Administration but accepted the war itself as necessary, and still others
unwilling to force the South to remain. Governor Burton, a peace-loving
elderly man, teetered between the latter two positions, to the despair and
fury of more ardent partisans. Among the State’s militia companies were a
few suspected of disloyalty. Twice Federal troops came into the State to
disarm such units, once late in 1861 and again in March, 1862. On this
second ‘““invasion,” two companies of Colonel James Wallace’s Maryland
Home Guards appeared in Dover, blocked exits from the capital and, when
arms were not promptly surrendered, forced an entrance into the State
House. There, they were quartered for several days. One of the Maryland-
ers, Lt. J. E. Rastell, left an interesting account of the t. When the
troops prepared to leave, taking five suspects from the i te vicinity, a

hostile crowd gathered, apparently intending to rescue the prisoners, but
fixed bayonets prevented open violence as the party marched to the railroad
station. On two other occasions Federal troops entered Delaware for a few
days, to act as guards at the polls in the elections of 1862 and 1864.
This ff intense protest, and was one element that helped embitter
Delaware politics for a generation.

Dover continued to thrive in the post-Civil War era. The Dover Gas
Works Company expanded and provided more of the elaborate street lights
used until the advent of electricity. A building spree added the Post Office,
the Roman Catholic Church on Bradford Street, and the new Kent County
Court House. In 1874, the Wilmington Conference Academy (Wesley Col-
lege) rose to four stories between State Street and Governor’s Avenue.

The recession of 1873 caused hardship in the county, but by 1882 the
economy was on its feet. A Public School on New Street was erected, and the
Hotel Richardson, for many years the finest on the Peninsula, graced the
triangle between State Street and Kings Highway at City Plaza. Around this
time, the Richardson and Robbins meat processing plant moved to its
present location, and the Robbins Hose Company, Dover’s volunteer fire
department, was organized. The first fire of record, a dwelling house,
occurred January 28, 1883. In that same year, a fire house was built for the
hose carriages “The Robbins’ and the “Dover.”

The nineteenth century closed in a blaze of glory. On New Year’s Eve,
1899, fourteen stores on busy Loockerman Street, and 41 arc lights on the
streets of Dover flashed on in a wondrous display of electric light. Dover
entered the twentieth century in illuminated brilliance.

Caesar Rodney might be Dover’s “Favorite Son,” but Annie Jump
Cannon is probably its ‘“Favorite Daughter.” A graduate of Wilmington
Conference Academy, Annie Cannon went on to Wellesley. She was the first
woman to receive an honorary degree from Oxford University, the second
person elected honorary member of the Royal Astronomical Society of Great
Britain, and the first woman ever elected to be an officer of the American
Astronomical Society.

From 1897 until shortly before her death, she was a distinguished member
of the Harvard Observatory staff. Her work in the spectral classification of
stars filled 10 quarto volumes, including 9 volumes of the ‘‘Henry Draper
Catalogue.” Her “extension to the Henry Draper Catalogue” included over
400,000 stellar bodies. Annie Jump Cannon watched the heavens; as a small
child in Dover she took delight in the rainbow. Later, on the roof of her
father’s home on State Street she scrutinized the star-lit skies. She organized
her first observatory in the attic of that house. She is buried in a modest grave
in Dover’s Lakeside Cemetery.

In 1933 Capitol Square was laid out, and Legislative Hall became the
home of Delaware’s General Assembly. The creation of the capitol complex,
along with the expansion of City Plaza, has given Dover a spacious atr, in
keeping with William Penn’s original vision of his county seat in Kent.

Broad, tree-lined avenues, shady side streets, expansive greens, and the
meandering St. Jones River parks, lend a natural setting to Dover’s Georgian
and Victorian architecture. Park your car on Capitol Square and trace the
friendly steps of Dover’s Heritage Trail.
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silver, and two original tin sconces. In this building and the second, there are
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founder and president. Among the notable Delawareans buried in the
churchyard are John M. Clayton, Thomas Clayton, the Reverend John
Miller, and Colonel John Haslet.

The Governor’s House (c. 1790) (Kings Highway, Dover)—this homeis an
excellent example e Georgian architecture. A pretentious structure,
it features a wide hall with adjoining reception rooms. Its interior
carving, in the Chippendale manner, is among the best in Delaware, and the
house is furnished in fine, period antiques. The home of Delaware’s Chief

ive is 0 afte from 2:00 p. p.m. In-
in the irs li arters of the r and his
, and the include m jects of

“Delawareana’” —artifacts and antiques reminiscent of Delaware history.
The home, known as “Woodburn,” was according to tradition, a
stop on the famed und Railroad in the pre-Civil War era.
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The John Dickinson Mansion—(South on U.S. Rt. 113, to Rt. 68 and
Kitts Hummock). This structure is a fine example of Delaware plantation

inson, aroun It was the
nman of the ion,” and
on. He was nt of the
Delaware State in 1781 and 1782, and was prominent in Delaware’s
delegatio buildings
are open 30 p.m.;
Sundays ys. There
is no admission charge.
Barratt’s Chapel—(near Frederica, Rt.
113) Here, in November, 1784, Thomas
Coke and Francis Asbury first met, com-
munion was first administered in America
according to Methodist rites by authorized
Methodist ministers, and preliminary plans
were made for the organization of the
Ll

as the “Cradle of Methodism,”

area. Open Tuesday through
Saturday 9:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.; Sundays 1:00 p.m. to 5 00 p.m. There are
Sunday evening services in summer at 7:30 p.m

center, figured in many episodes from the pre-Civil War era.
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parsonage just to the north on South State Street.

Delaware State Visitors Service
630 State College Rd.
Dover, Delaware 19901

No person or group shall be excluded from participation, denied any
benefits, or subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, or
national origin in any facility or attraction listed in this publication in full
compliance with Title VI, of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
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